
Page 1 

   

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
AGENDA 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 
Arroyo Grande City Council Chambers 

 215 E. Branch Street 
Arroyo Grande, California 93420 

   
Wednesday, September 20, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. 

 
Board Members                                                             Agencies 
John Shoals, Chair                   City of Grover Beach 
Linda Austin, Vice Chair                  Oceano Community Services District 
Jim Hill, Director                   City of Arroyo Grande 
 
Alternate Board Members  
Karen White, Director       Oceano Community Services District 
Tim Brown, Director       City of Arroyo Grande 
Barbara Nicolls, Director           City of Grover Beach 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 

This public comment period is an invitation to members of the community to present 
comments, thoughts or suggestions on matters not scheduled on this agenda.  
Comments should be limited to those matters which are within the jurisdiction of the 
District.  The Brown Act restricts the Board from taking formal action on matters not 
published on the agenda.  In response to your comments, the Chair or presiding Board 
Member may: 

 Direct Staff to assist or coordinate with you. 

 Direct Staff to place your issue or matter on a future Board meeting 
agenda. 

Please adhere to the following procedures when addressing the Board: 

 Comments should be limited to three (3) minutes or less. 

 Your comments should be directed to the Board as a whole and not 
directed to individual Board members. 

 Slanderous, profane or personal remarks against any Board Member, 
Staff or member of the audience shall not be permitted. 

http://www.sslocsd.us/


Page 2 

   

Any writing or document pertaining to an open-session item on this agenda which is 
distributed to a majority of the Board after the posting of this agenda will be available for 
public inspection at the time the subject writing or document is distributed.  The writing or 
document will be available for public review in the offices of the Oceano CSD, a member 
agency located at 1655 Front Street, Oceano, California.  Consistent with the Americans 
with Disabilities Act (ADA) and California Government Code §54954.2, requests for 
disability-related modification or accommodation, including auxiliary aids or services, 
may be made by a person with a disability who requires modification or accommodation 
in order to participate at the above referenced public meeting by contacting the District 
Administrator or Bookkeeper/Secretary at (805) 481-6903.  So that the District may 
address your request in a timely manner, please contact the District two business days 
in advance of the meeting. 

  
5. CONSENT AGENDA: 
 

The following routine items listed below are scheduled for consideration as a group.  
Each item is recommended for approval unless noted.  Any member of the public who 
wishes to comment on any Consent Agenda item may do so at this time.  Any Board 
Member may request that any item be withdrawn from the Consent Agenda to permit 
discussion or to change the recommended course of action.  The Board may approve 
the remainder of the Consent Agenda on one motion. 
 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
5B. Approval of Minutes for Meeting of September 6, 2017 

 
6.       ACTION ITEMS: 

 
6A. JOINT INVESTIGATION WITH ARROYO GRANDE 
 

1. PRESENTATION BY LIEBERT, CASSIDY WHITMORE   
2. DIRECTION TO STAFF 

 
 
 6B. TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS AND PLANT OPERATION’S REPORT 

 
Receive and File Report 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 
8. CLOSED SESSION 
 

8A.   CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS pursuant to Government 
Code Section 54957.6: Agency designated representatives:  Richard Sweet or 
Paul J. Karp; Susan Wells Employee organization:  Service Employees 
International Union (SEIU) Local 620 

 
8B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: ANTICIPATED LITIGATION: 

significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Government 
Code Section:  54956.9 (d), paragraph 2, and (e)(5): Three Items 



Page 3 

   

 
 8C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: ANTICIPATED LITIGATION:   
  significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section:   
  54956.9 (d), paragraph 2, and (e)(4): One Item 
  
9. ADJOURN MEETING 
 
 
 

The next regular Board of Directors meeting is scheduled for  
October 4, 2017, 6 pm at the  

Arroyo Grande City Council Chambers,  
215 E. Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, California 93420 





Item 5A Page 1 
 

 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT 

WARRANT REGISTER 

09/20/2017 FY 2017/2018 

VENDORS BUDGET LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION WARRANT NO. ACCT ACCT BRKDN TOTAL 

AGP PROF SERVICES-AGP 7091 09202017-2416 19-7080 1,500.00 1,500.00 

ATLAS PERFORMANCE IND. ADMIN OFFICE SPACE RI100494 2417 19-7040 225.00 225.00 

BANK OF THE WEST OFFICE SUPPLIES USPS 2418 19-8045 46.43 1,950.81 

 TRAINING MUI/ DELEON  19-7067 1,448.85  
 ADMIN OFFICE SPACE FIVE CITIES STORAGE  19-7040 195.00  
 EQUIPMENT RENTAL HAULAWAY  19-7093 93.80  
 WEBHOSTING SHERWEB  19-7013 166.73  
BRENNTAG PLANT CHEMICALS BPI766441 2419 19-8050 4,218.17 4,218.17 

CENTRAL COAST PLUMBING EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 227 2420 19-8045 317.00 317.00 

CULLIGAN CCWT EQUIPMENT RENTAL 44570 2421 19-7032 60.00 60.00 

CULLIGAN SANTA MARIA EQUIPMENT RENTAL 65805 2422 19-7032 17.50 17.50 

 

DIAMOND A EQUIPMENT 
 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 
 

W00250 
 

2423 

19-8030 

2017-A1-17 

 

1,356.98 
 

1,356.98 

ENVIRONMENTAL SCIENCE ASSOCIATES REDUNDANCY PROJECT 130184 2424 20-7080 1,440.00 1,440.00 

FANNY MUI PER DIEM TRI STATE SEMINAR 2425 19-7083 168.00 168.00 

 

GARING, TAYLOR & ASSOCIATES 
 

PROF SERVICES-AG SEWER BRIDGE 
 

14586 
 

2426 

26-8065 

2017-B1-01 
 

1,027.50 
 

1,027.50 

GILBERT TRUJILLO LEGAL COUNSEL AUGUST 2017 2427 19-7071 9,120.50 9,120.50 

GRAINGER SAFETY SUPPLIES 954120244 2428 19-8056 24.78 24.78 

JB DEWAR FUEL 855021 2429 19-8020 183.09 183.09 

JESSICA MATSON WEBSITE AUGUST 2017 2430 19-7065 277.50 277.50 

KSB, INC EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 0096189-IN 2431 19-7075 17,807.12 17,807.12 

 

HILTI 
 

EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 
 

4610137404 
 

2432 

19-8030 

2017-A1-27 

 

395.75 
 

395.75 

LARA HR SERVICES HUMAN RESOURCES 7/1/17-8/29/17 2433 19-7076 860.00 860.00 

LIEBERT, CASSIDY WHITMORE OUTSIDE COUNSEL JULY /AUGUST 2017 2434 19-7070 34,520.39 34,520.39 

MARIO DE LEON PER DIEM WASTEWATER TECHNOLOGY TRAINERS 2435 19-6075 140.00 140.00 

MULLAHEY FORD AUTOMOTIVE MAINTENANCE 63138 2436 19-8032 435.09 435.09 

OILFIELD & ENVIRO. COMPLIANCE CHEMICAL ANALYSIS 1702989/1703327 2437 19-7078 260.00 260.00 

RICHARD SWEET, PE PROF SERVICES-ENGINEERING JULY 27, 2017-AUG 30, 2017 2438 19-7077 13,035.00 13,035.00 

PG&E ELECTRICITY 8/10/2017-9/10/2017 2439 19-7091 18,130.51 18,130.51 

QUILL.COM OFFICE SUPPLIES 8600882 2440 19-8045 351.90 351.90 

REGIONAL GOVERNMENT SERVICES HUMAN RESOURCES 7410 2441 19-7076 5,460.00 5,460.00 

SM TIRE EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 595041 2442 
19-8030 

2017 A1-03 106.77 106.77 

SO CAL GAS UTILITIES-GAS 7/28/2017-8/28/2017 2443 19-7092 357.14 357.14 

SOUTH COUNTY SANITARY UTILITIES-RUBBISH 5782093/5775104 2444 19-7093 1,178.46 1,178.46 

SPRINT COMMUNICATIONS 205201234-146 2445 19-7013 219.33 219.33 

STANLEY SECURITY COMMUNICATIONS ALARMS 14881386 2446 19-7011 64.06 64.06 

STATE FUND WORK COMP 9/1/2017-10/1/2017 2447 19-6080 3,595.00 3,595.00 
 

USA BLUEBOOK 
 

EQUIPMENT SUPPLIES 
 

353369 
 

2448 
19-8030 

2017-A1-27 

 

64.38 
 

64.38 

VWR LAB SUPPLIES 8049699454/8049685180 2449 19-8040 368.45 368.45 

WENDY STOCKTON PROF SERVICES ATTORNEY FEE AUGUST 2017 2450 19-7071 8,047.50 8,047.50 

SUB TOTAL     $ 127,283.68 $ 127,283.68 

 

 

 
SO. SLO CO. SANITATION DISTRICT 

 

PAYROLL 

 

PPE 9/1/2017 

 

 

 
2451 

19-6030 

19-6040 

19-6045 

19-6090 

 

 

 
26,060.37 

 

 

 
46,921.55 

 CALPERS HEALTH OCTOBER 2017  19-6010 17,860.28  
 CALPERS RETIREMENT PPE 9/1/2017  19-6060 3,000.90  
GRAND TOTAL     $  174,205.23 $ 174,205.23 

 
We hereby certify that the demands numbered serially from 09202017-2416 to 09202017-2450 together with the supporting evidence 

have been examined, and that they comply with the requirements of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION 

DISTRICT.  The demands are hereby approved by motion of the SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY SANITATION DISTRICT, 

together with warrants authorizing and ordering the issuance of checks numbered identically with the particular demands and 

warrants. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 
   

DATE: 
  

       

Chairman     Board Member  

Board Member     Secretary  
 





 

5B, Page 1 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339, Oceano, California 93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666  FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.us 

 
 

Action Summary Minutes of the 
Meeting of Wednesday, September 6, 2017, at 6:00 p.m. 

 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Arroyo Grande City Council Chambers 
 215 E. Branch Street 

Arroyo Grande, California 93420 
 ____________________________________________________________________________  

 
1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 
Chairman Shoals called the meeting to order and recognized a quorum. 
 
Present: John Shoals, Chairman, City of Grover Beach 
  Jim Hill, Director, City of Arroyo Grande 
  Linda Austin, Vice Chair, Oceano Community Services District 
 
District Staff: Paul Karp, Technical/Administrative Services Consultant 
  Gilbert A. Trujillo, District Legal Counsel 
  

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
Chairman Shoals led the Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. AGENDA REVIEW 
 
 Motion: Director Austin made a motion to approve the Agenda as presented 
 
 Second: Director Hill 
 
 Action: Motion approved 3 – 0  
 
 Ayes:  Directors Austin, Hill and Shoals 
            Noes:              None 
 
4. PUBLIC COMMENTS ON ITEMS NOT APPEARING ON AGENDA 
 
            Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
 
            Julie Tacker commented on the former Administrator’s relocation expenses, Water Board         
            complaint filed by the former Administrator and disparaging remarks made about staff.  
 
             Kris Victorine spoke on District Counsel and the 2015/16 final audit. 

http://www.sslocsd.us/


 

5B, Page 2 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

             Ron Holt commented on the current Brown Act document. 
 
             Patricia Price spoke on Chairman Shoals City Council report, the former Administrator’s     
             management style and employee’s leave without due process. 
 
             Mary Lucey commented on Board meeting guidelines regarding personnel. 
 
             Colene Kubel spoke in support of Director/Mayor Hill and moving forward. 
 
             Nicholas Pressure commented on recall forms. 
 
             Cinnamon Lofton spoke in support of unitive merging of all. 
 
             Shirley Gibson commented on taking the focus off of the former District Administrator and   
             moving forward. 
 
             Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
  
 5. CONSENT AGENDA: 

 
 Director Hill requested the approval of Warrants be take separately. 
 
5A.  Approval of Warrants  
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
 
 Julie Tacker spoke on the Downey Brand warrant. 
 
 Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
 
 Director Hill made a motion to approve the Warrant Register excluding the  

  Downey Brand Warrant. 
 
 Motion died for lack of second. 
  

  Motion: Director Austin made a motion to approve the Warrant Register as 
    presented 
 
  Second: Director Shoals  
 
  Action: Motion approved 2 – 1 Director Hill voted No  
 
  Ayes:  Directors Austin and Shoals 
              Noes:              Director Hill 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

5B, Page 3 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

 Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period for the remaining items on  
  the Consent Agenda. 

 
 Julie Tacker spoke on removing the Public Commenter’s community of residence 

  from the Minutes and why she called Point of Order during the August 2, 2017  
  meeting. 

 
 Shirley Gibson stated the Minutes should be Action Summary only. 
 
 Mary Lucey commented on Director Hill’s statement regarding the joint   

  investigation. 
 
 Nicholas Pressure commented on doing the financial report without a final audit. 
 
 Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
  
5B. Approval of Minutes of Meeting of the Special Meeting of July 26, 2017 
5C. Approval of Minutes of Meeting of August 2, 2017 
5D. Approval of Minutes of Meeting of August 16, 2017 
5E. July Financial Report 

 
  Motion: Director Austin made a motion to approve the Minutes as   
    presented.  It was further ordered that future Minutes be Action  
    Summary only and the public speakers community of residence not 
    be included in the Minutes. 
 
  Second: Director Hill 
 
  Action: Motion approved 3 - 0 
 
  Ayes:  Directors Austin, Hill and Shoals 
              Noes:              None 
 
6.       ACTION ITEMS: 

 
6A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO REVISE THE 
 ADOPTED BUDGET  FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-18 REGARDING LINE ITEMS 
 FOR LEGAL  EXPENSES. 
 
 Technical Consultant Paul J. Karp provided the Staff Report requesting revisions 
 to the two line items for Legal Expenses in the adopted 2017/18 budget. 
 
 Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period.   
 
 Julie Tacker commented on legal fees. 
 
 Debbie Peterson spoke on legal fees. 
 
 Mary Lucey spoke on the Budget, legal fees and Human Resources. 
  
 Patricia Price commented on legal fees. 



 

5B, Page 4 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

 
 Shirley Gibson supported the new leaderships recommendations. 
 
 Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
 

  Motion: Director Austin made a motion to adopt Resolution 2017-376 to  
    revise amounts on line items for legal expenses of adopted budget 
    for Fiscal Year 2017-18. 
 
  Second: Director Shoals 
 
  Action: Motion approved 2 – 1.  Director Hill voted No with prejudice. 
 
  Ayes:  Directors Austin and Shoals 
              Noes:              Director Hill 

  
 6B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION OF APPROVAL TO SUBMIT AN 

 APPLICATION FOR MEMBERSHIP OF PAUL J. KARP TO THE SAN LUIS 
 OBISPO COUNTY FLOOD CONTROL AND WATER CONSERVATION 
 DISTRICT ZONE 1 AND 1A ADVISORY COMMITTEE. 

 
  Technical Consultant Paul J. Karp provided the Staff Report requesting approval 

 to submit an application for membership of Paul J. Karp to the San Luis Obispo 
 County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 1 and 1A Advisory 
 Committee. 

   
  Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
 
  Nicholas Pressure questioned if serving both the District and Advisory Committee 

 would be a conflict of interest. 
 
  Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
 
  Technical Consultant Paul J. Karp explained what the Zone 1/1A Committee is 

 advising. 
 

  Motion: Director Hill made a motion to appoint Paul J. Karp to the San Luis 
    Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Zone 
    1 and 1A Advisory Committee to fill the vacancy left by Gerhardt  
    Hubner. 
 
  Second: Director Austin. 
 
  Action: Motion approved 3-0 
 
  Ayes:  Directors Hill, Austin and Shoals 
              Noes:              None 

 
 
 
   



 

5B, Page 5 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

 6C. DISCUSSION AND DIRECTION TO STAFF REGARDING THE STATUS OF  
  THE JOINT INVESTIGATION WITH THE CITY OF ARROYO GRANDE 

 
  District Counsel Gilbert Trujillo advised that Board direction was needed on the 

 following: 
 

1. Liebert, Cassidy Whitmore to present in open session a review of the joint 
investigation; 
 
and 
 

2. Waive attorney/client privilege of additional joint investigation related 
documents. 

 
  Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
 
  Nicholas Pressure commented on the investigation findings. 
 
  Teri Kleir spoke in support of Director Hill. 
 
  Shirley Gibson commented on witnessing a conversation conspiring against the  
  former District Administrator. 
 
  Stewart Jenkins spoke on waiving the attorney/client privilege, and placing the  
  Liebert, Cassidy Whitmore and Stewart Jenkins letter on the District website. 
  
  Debbie Peterson commented on legal fees and apology due to Director Hill. 
 
  Julie Tacker spoke on the joint investigation summary and actual reports. 
 
  Colene Kubel commented on content and inaccuracies in the report. 
 
  Otis Page spoke on fallacy in the report, legal counsel and lack of due process for 
  Director Hill.  
 
  Matt Guerrero spoke in support of the investigation and he alleged fabrication  
  created by Director Hill. 
 
  Patricia Price commented on Director Hill not getting due process and a vote of no 
  confidence petition. 
 
  Mary Lucey spoke on the need for the joint investigation report to go public. 
 
  Ron Holt commented on the investigation and his thought that Liebert Cassidy  
  Whitmore had a conflict. 
 
  Lindsay Westbrook thanked Director Hill. 
 
  Mike Nobel spoke in support of Director Hill. 
 
  Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 



 

5B, Page 6 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

 
  Motion: Director Austin made a motion to waive the attorney/client privilege, 
    release the report and have Liebert Cassidy Whitmore provide a  
    presentation to the Board, on the investigation, in open session. 
 
  Second: Director Shoals. 
 
  Action: Motion approved 3-0 
 
  Ayes:  Directors Austin, Hill and Shoals 
              Noes:              None. 
 

 6D. TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS AND PLANT OPERATION’S REPORT 
 
Technical Consultant Paul J. Karp gave the Technical Consultants and Plant 
Operation’s Report. 
 
The Board discussed the Cherry Avenue bridge, redundancy, ground water 
recycle, the C-train and the audit. 
 
Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
 
Debbie Peterson commented on the District By-laws and the Technical Advisors 
contract. 
 
Julie Tacker spoke on the Liebert, Cassidy, Whitmore retro contract, recycle of 
MND, bond market, administration trailer, C-train and the Audit. 
 
Patricia Price commented on the District’s By-laws. 
 
Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
  
The Board Received and Filed the Technical Consultant’s and Plant Operation’s 
Report. 

 
7. BOARD MEMBER COMMUNICATIONS 
 
 None 
 
8. CLOSED SESSION 
 
  District Counsel Gilbert Trujillo read the Closed Session items into the Record. 
 
  Chairman Shoals opened the Public Comment period. 
  
                        Stewart Jenkins, Attorney at Law, commented on Government Code Section     
                        54956.9. 
 
                        Julie Tacker commented on item 8A, exposure to litigation, and initiation of          
                        litigation. 
 



 

5B, Page 7 

 DRAFT MINUTES 

                        Chairman Shoals closed the Public Comment period. 
                            
 
 8A.   CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS pursuant to Government Code 
  Section 54957.6: Agency designated representatives:  Richard Sweet or Paul J.  
  Karp; Susan Wells Employee organization:  Service Employees International  
  Union  (SEIU) Local 620 
 
  Discussed, no reportable action. 
 
 8B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: ANTICIPATED LITIGATION:   
  significant exposure to litigation pursuant to paragraph (2) of Government  
  Code Section:  54956.9 (d), paragraph 2, and (e)(5): Three Items 
                         
                        Discussed, no reportable action. 
 
 8C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL: ANTICIPATED LITIGATION:   
  significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government Code Section:   
  54956.9 (d), paragraph 2, and (e)(4): One Item 
  
  Discussed, no reportable action. 
  
  The Board reconvened the meeting at 8:46. 
  
9. ADJOURN MEETING 
 
 The meeting was adjourned at 8:47 p.m. 
  
 

The next regular Board of Directors meeting is scheduled for  
September 20, 2017, 6 pm at the  

Arroyo Grande City Council Chambers,  
215 E. Branch Street, Arroyo Grande, California 93420 





Item 6A, Page 1 

 

 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

Post Office Box 339 Oceano, California  93475-0339 
1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 

Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 
www.sslocsd.org 

 
______________________________________________________________________ 

          STAFF REPORT 
 

Date:           September 20, 2017 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
 

From:  Technical Consultants 
 
Subject: JOINT INVESTIGATION WITH ARROYO GRANDE; PRESENTATION BY 

LIEBERT CASSIDY WHITMORE (LCW); DIRECTION TO STAFF 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
That a representative of Liebert Cassidy Whitmore present its findings on the Joint 
Investigation with the City of Arroyo Grande and that the Board provide direction to staff. 
 
BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION: 
 
On March 1, 2017 Board meeting, the Board approved a request from the City of Arroyo 
Grande to participate in an independent joint investigation of alleged misconduct by the 
Mayor of Arroyo Grande concerning his representation on the District Board.  The 
investigation was performed by Liebert Cassidy Whitmore (LCW) and completed in 
early August and is available to the public at the District website (sslocsd.org). 
 
At the September 6, 2017 District meeting, the Board chose to waive its confidentiality 
regarding a memo prepared by LCW which provides conclusions and 
recommendations.  At the September 12, 2017 meeting of the Arroyo Grande City 
Council, Council acted to waive the confidentiality associated with the LCW memo.  The 
LCW memo is now available to the public and is attached. 
 
While the minutes of the meeting of the Arroyo Grande City Council are not available as 
of this writing, it appears, as identified through viewing of the live stream of the Council 
meeting, that the Council (3-2 with Hill and Brown dissenting) chose to request the 
following actions: 
 

 Adoption of a new password policy 
. 



Item 6A, Page 2 

 

 Recommendation that the Mayor participates in one-on-one training, preferably 
with CJPIA. 
 

 Ask the Mayor to step down from the Sanitation District Board; Assign the Mayor 
Pro Tem to attend meetings. 
 

 Request that the Sanitation District implement the recommendations of LCW. 
 

 Encourage other Councilmember to attend the one-on-one training. 
 

 Compare policies and expectations with the Sanitation District. 
 

 Develop a voluntary code of ethics signed by Council members and 
Commissioners. 

 

 Update email policies. 
 

 Establish a protocol for staff communications. 
 

 Provide job descriptions and expectations for City Council, Planning 
Commission, ARC and HRC, including roles and protocols.  

 
 
Attachment: Conclusions and Recommendation by LCW 
 



















































Technical Consultants Report Item 6B Page 1 
 

 
 

SOUTH SAN LUIS OBISPO COUNTY 
SANITATION DISTRICT 

1600 Aloha Oceano, California 93445-9735 
Telephone (805) 489-6666 FAX (805) 489-2765 

http://www.sslocsd.org/ 
 
 

             
 
Date:     September 20, 2017 
 
 
To:        Board of Directors 
 
From:  Paul Karp and Richard Sweet, Technical Consultants; Fanny Mui, Interim 

Plant Superintendent 
 
Subject: TECHNICAL CONSULTANTS AND PLANT OPERATION’S REPORT 
 
 
This report represents ongoing information on latest District staff activities on, major 
capital project and studies, programmatic initiatives, regional collaboration, NPDES 
discharge permit renewal, Plant Operation’s report detailing our operation and 
maintenance activities. Updates since the last report are provided in italics below: 
 
Major Capital Projects: 
   
 Cherry Ave. Arroyo Grande Sewer Bridge Project:  

 
CEQA: Status:  Complete.  Board approved MND at its September 7, 2016 meeting. 
Regulatory permits: Complete.  All Regulatory permits received. 

 
At the June 21, 2017 Board meeting, the Board awarded a contract to Brough 
Construction Inc. in the amount of $280,200.  Since then an Agreement has been 
executed by both parties.  A bird nesting survey was recently commissioned in order 
for the project to initiate work on August 1st.  Project is 75 percent complete and will 

be completed by October 31st. Site visit by technical consultants verified project 
progress. 
 
Mechanical Bar Screen – Status: Operational. 
 
During the week of July 24th, Duperon representatives were on-site to install additional 
components and address remaining operational issues.  A final change order for 
approximately $6,000 is being processed. Contractor is installing devices to enhance 
the facility discharge. Final payment is pending completion to refine discharge.  

http://www.sslocsd.org/


Technical Consultants Report Item 6B Page 2 
 

 
 
 

 Redundancy Project:   
Design: On March 16, 2016, the Board approved a design contract with 
Kennedy/Jenks for Phase I of this project.  On June 21st, the Board approved 
proceeding with the remaining phases under the contract, including final design. On 
July 5th, the Board approved Optional Task 1.4A – Alternatives for Future Production 
of Recycled Water.   Several meetings are planned with Kennedy/Jenks on August 2nd 
to discuss both the design for flood mitigation and progress on optional recycled water 
task.    
 
A meeting with the Design team and stakeholders was held on Wednesday, August 2, 
2017 to define Flood Hazard Mitigation priorities.   A phone conference between 
design team and Technical Consultants was held to define options and timeframes.  
Options will be presented to the board in late fall of 2017.  Meetings with  

 
Coastal Commission Permitting:  
On May 10, 2017, the Commission voted unanimously to approve a 30-year Coastal 
Development Permit for the Project (see attached press release).  The Commission 
approved revised Findings on June 7th finalizing their May 10th decision.  The Notice 
of Intent to Issue a CDP was received from Coastal Commission staff on June 19th, 
and staff returned it acknowledging its receipt.  Environmental Science Associates is 
under contract to develop the Coastal Hazard Plan, (one of the conditions contained 
in the CDP), and will be meeting/touring our facility on August 1st.    
 
Financing:   
State: All portions of the SRF loan package application have been submitted to 
SWRCB.  On July 13th, staff attended a SWRCB SRF Policy and Prioritization 
workshop.  At the workshop SWRCB staff presented the latest information on the 
program, future fund/loan availability (still more demand than funds availability), and 
suggestions from audience members on how to make the program more efficient.   In 
addition, a conference call with SWRCB SRF loan staff was held on June 28th to 
discuss our application.  Based upon the call, SWRCB staff has requested a number 
of submittals including recirculating the MND Addendum through the State 
Clearinghouse and Board re-adoption, updated cultural resources report, biological 
species lists for project area, and air quality modeling for construction.  Staff will be 
bringing at a future meeting options to move forward on these submittals. 
 
Federal: United States Department of Agriculture: On June 2nd, staff and MKN met on-
site with two USDA representatives to discuss programs USDA administrates for 
funding wastewater infrastructure.  The meeting was very positive, with indications the 
District could be eligible for grants and loans up to one third of the amount needed for 
the Redundancy Project through a disadvantageous community program.  A follow-up 
meeting and tour of our WWTP was held July 11th.  Additional items they are requiring 
include a preliminary engineering report, updated alternative analysis consistent with 
NEPA, and preparation of a categorical exclusion.    
 

 Biosolids Concrete Slab: Preliminary engineering and design work is complete. With 
Coastal Commission approval now received, this project can proceed to the next step, 



Technical Consultants Report Item 6B Page 3 
 

with bid advertisement, and award.  We anticipate construction of this project 
(approximately $33,000) occurring in late 2017 or Spring 2018. 
 

 Primary Digester No. 1 Cleanout and Structural Evaluation: The District has two 
primary digesters at its facility.  Primary Digester No. 1 (constructed in 1965) is long 
overdue for its regular clean out and inspection (last completed in 2005).  In addition, 
staff and our consultant engineering firm MKN, are concerned with its structural 
integrity.  The first phase is for the cleanout of the digester. The second phase will 
involve, after cleanout, an inspection and structural survey to determine the digester’s 
structural integrity.  Recommendations for any repairs are also proposed as part of 
this second phase.  At the April 5th Board meeting, the Board approved funding for 1st 
phase of this project.   An executed Agreement was recently issued to Wastewater 
Solids Management for $243,690 and work is expected to start on August 21st.  The 
temporary centrifuge has arrived from Pace, and is operational.  District staff continues 
to prepare the plant for the project.  During the week of August 8thst, staff repaired a 
valve necessary to redirect sludge from digester no. 1 to digester no. 2. Project is well 
underway with primary digester drained approximately half way.  MKN has been 
authorized to perform evaluation of structure integrity. 

  
District Control Building and Office: Significant issues and problems are evident in 
the District’s Operational and Administrative Building.   The new concrete flooring for 
the building has been installed.  The next steps are a thorough/deep cleaning of the 
building, replacement baseboards, interior painting and new furniture.  Painting is 
complete, computer communication equipment has been installed and the facility is 
operational.  Phone system is being evaluated for efficiencies and enhancements.  

 
District staff executed a contract with an architectural firm for an audit/assessment of 
the existing building for disabled access and 2016 Building Code compliance. The 
Audit Report completed identifies a number of deficiencies that will need major and 
minor corrective actions.  Surveying for the ADA ramps and project plans are projected 
to be completed in September.     
 

Studies:   
 

Recycled Water Planning Facilities Study Grant:  Complete. Staff submitted the 
Final Study to SWRCB on June 9, 2017.  We are awaiting SWRCB final acceptation 
and a letter allowing final reimbursement.  Upon receipt of that letter, District staff will 
prepare the required documentation and invoice for submission.    
 
Inflow & Infiltration (I & I) Study:  The District’s plant received significant increased 
flow this past wet weather season.   A multiple phased I&I study approach is being 
utilized first with the installation of new flow meters to measure any increase flow from 
our member agencies collection system.  Both Phase I and Phase II of the Study were 
included in the adopted Budget for Fiscal Year 2017-18.  As the first step, District staff 
has purchased another flow meter to collect data for one of our trunk lines 
 

 
 
 
 
Programmatic Initiatives 



Technical Consultants Report Item 6B Page 4 
 

 
 
Outreach Initiative:  At the June 19th Board meeting, the Board approved the Summer 
2017 Newsletter.  Next steps include printing and distributing the Newsletter through 
our member agencies utility bills.   
 
Office Job Trailer:   On August 31, 2017 the office job Trailer was removed from the 
site and returned to Atlas Performance Industries, Inc.  
 
Records Management Initiative: At the May 3, 2017, Board meeting the Board adopted 
a comprehensive overhaul of our existing Records Retention Policy.  Staff is also 
considering various options for housing our C-Train records, as the C-Train must be 
removed by September 1st per the Coastal Commission CDP waiver issued back in 
December 2016.  These options are being coordinated through the SLO District 
Attorney’s office.   The Technical Consultants are considering options to allow the 
SeaTrain to remain onsite thereby allowing the records to remain onsite.  The 
California Coastal Commission has been contacted to assess permitting requirements.  
The District is awaiting a response from the Commission. 
 
Human Resources/Personnel Policy Manual Update: All Sections of PPM have now 
been reviewed (including legal input), updated with significant and comprehensive 
revisions. Subsequently, the entire revised and updated Manual was sent to SEIU 
employee union representatives.  At the June 17th meeting SEIU representatives 
provided comments on all Sections of the Updated PPM, except the job descriptions.  
Comments on the latter are expected at the July 28th meeting.   

 
The negotiation team met with SEIU representatives on September 14th to discuss 
and refine SEIU’s latest proposals and revisions to the draft Memorandum of 
Understanding.  
 
Strategic Planning Initiative: The Strategic Planning Workshop has been postponed to 
September.     

 
Financial Initiative: Annual Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Audit:  District auditors Glenn 
Burdette, continue to work with staff to complete our Audit.  On July 21st, staff received 
another list of open items to complete, and have tasked our bookkeeper to work with 
our Auditors to complete the items as soon as possible.  There has been a flurry of 
materials provided to Glenn, Burdett.  Significant progress is being made towards 
completion of the audit. 
 

Regional Collaboration 
 

 Regional Groundwater Sustainability Project (RGSP):  This project consists of a 
potential future regional recycling project in the South San Luis Obispo County area in 
conjunction with the City of Pismo Beach, and the District (with participation of our 
member agencies: Cities of Arroyo Grande, Grover Beach, and Oceano CSD).  On 
June 20th, the MOU between the City of Pismo Beach and the District was approved 
by the Pismo Beach City Council.  The City also awarded a contract for the joint EIR 
to Rincon Consultants at that same meeting.  The Technical Consultants are meeting 
with the regional advisory group in September.  Technical Consultants met with Water 
System Consulting to be briefed on project status. 



Technical Consultants Report Item 6B Page 5 
 

 
 Northern Cities Management Area Technical Group - The NCMA TG, formed as a 

result of the Santa Maria Groundwater Basin (SMGB) Adjudication, is exploring 
various ways to protect and enhance future water supplies in the basin through 
groundwater monitoring, and the collection and analyzing of data pertinent to water 
supply and demand.   

 
 Water Reuse, Central Coast Chapter - The Association is a not-for-profit association 

(501c6) of utilities, government agencies and industry that advocates for laws, policies 
and funding to promote water reuse and reclamation.   
 

 Zone 1/1A Flood Control Advisory Committee – The Committee’s focus is to provide 
input and coordination on proposed improvements and maintenance of the Zone 1/1A 
flood facilities, working with the Coastal San Luis Resource Conservation District.   The 
Board appointed  Paul Karp, Technical Consultant to the District, to the Flood Control 
Advisory Committee.  

 
 Integrated Regional Water Management (IRWM).  IRWM is a collaborative effort with 

the County of San Luis Obispo to manage all aspects of water resources on a region-
wide scale.  
 

 San Luis Obispo County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Water 
Resources Advisory Committee (WRAC)  

 
 Countywide Water Action Team/Water Management Efforts: Water managers 

throughout San Luis Obispo County meet quarterly to discuss and collaborate on water 
supply management solutions.  The next meeting is scheduled for September 22nd. 

 
RWQCB NPDES Permit Renewal 
Based upon a recent conversation with RWQCB staff, a draft permit is not likely to be 
released for public review before late 2017.   
 
In addition, staff revised the Sewer System Management Plan Audit Report to come in 
compliance with our General WDR.  The WDR requires an Audit be completed every two 
years.  Unfortunately, this Audit report was due last summer and was not timely completed.  
This Audit Report describes our planned activities under the Plan for the upcoming year. 
 
District’s Brine Disposal Program: 
District staff completed a revised Brine Disposal Plan this month, and submitted it to the 
RWQCB for review and evaluation. 
 
Public Records Requests 

 During the month of September, the District received 2 Public Records Requests. 
  



 

PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT                              6B, Page  1 

 

Plant Operation’s Report 
 
During the reporting period of September 1st – September 13th, 2017, it is not yet known if the 
District’s facility continues to regularly meet its Permit limitations as required under the State of 
California’s National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit. Due to renovation 
of the District’s Office, lab analysis has been contracted out. Results from contracted labs take 
longer to receive than in house lab analysis. Data will be updated as lab results are received. All 
process values (lab test results) were within permit limits. 
 

Monthly Plant Data as of September 13th, 2017 
 

 
 

 Limit – 40/60/90 represent NPDES Permit limits for the monthly average, weekly average, and 
instantaneous value for plant effluent BOD and TSS. 
 
**High chlorine usage due to filling of secondary bug box chlorine tote; filling of secondary bug 
box tote does not necessarily mean a large amount of chlorine was used that day. 
 
The District’s laboratory is expected to be up and running by mid-October. Safety meetings will 
resume in accordance to the District’s Injury and Illness Prevention Program. 
 
Operation and Maintenance Projects 

 All Operations staff assisted in completion of daily operations, rounds, and reads 
 Reviewed and checked U.S.A.’s near District trunk sewer lines 
 Checked #1 Influent pump in Headworks and cleared the line of rags 
 Fluid Resource Management removed old elbow to install new elbow for barscreen chute 

and orifice restrictor plate 
 Pacific Petroleum California, Inc. transferred fuel from old diesel tank to new diesel tank. 

Removed and disposed old fuel tank to install new fuel tank 
 Collected Quarterly Biosolids samples for testing by Fruit Growers Laboratory, Inc. 
 Adjusted diaphragm and cleaned out cylinder on new polymer feed pump in H&M building 
 Inspected and cleared out plugged flow meter at Brine Disposal Station 
 Primary Digester Cleaning Project 

o Opened one 36’’ manway hatch 
o Pre-construction meeting with MKN and Wastewater Solids Management, Inc. 
o WSM completed mobilization and began cleaning operations  

 Work Orders 
o De-ragged both primary clarifier sludge pumps 

September 

2017

INF Flow 

MGD

INF Peak 

Flow MGD

INF BOD 

mg/L

EFF BOD 

mg/L

BOD % 

Removal

INF TSS 

mg/L

EFF TSS 

mg/L

TSS % 

Removal

Fecal 

Coliform 

MPN/100mL

Chlorine 

Usage 

lbs/day

Low 2.24 3.4 360 22 410 29 4 203

High 2.72 5 370 24 460 57 1600 484**

Average 2.45 3.9 365 23 93.7 435 43 90.1 274 275

Sept 2016 AVG 2.26 3.6 472 29.3 93.8 453 40.5 91.1 125.9 230

Limit 5.0 40/60/90 >80 40/60/90 >80 2000



 

PLANT OPERATIONS REPORT                              6B, Page  2 

 

o Rinsed both primary clarifiers 
o Test ran Emergency Generator and Bypass Pump 
o Changed influent and effluent ISCO pump tubing 

 
Training 

 Operator De Leon attended WasteWater Technology Trainers Grade I/II Wastewater 
Operator Certification & Math Review course at San Jose-Santa Clara Regional 
Wastewater Facility  
 

Call Outs 
 No call outs to report for this reporting period 

 

 
 

 


	Agenda 09202017
	Item 5A 09202017 WARRANT REGISTER (1)
	Item 5B DRAFT MINUTES SEPT 6 2017
	Item 6A 1  Joint Investigation Presentation
	Item 6A 1 FINAL Legal Conclusions and Recommendations after Brown Act Investigation[9476]
	Item 6B Technical Consultants -Operations Report FINAL
	Item 6B1 PlantOperationsReport 092017
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

